[bookmark: _GoBack]Wickford Design Guidelines Steering Committee Minutes
December 4, 2017

1. Call to order
· The meeting began at 6:30 PM. All steering committee members were present (Jeff Shapiro, Gail Hallock Cyr, Palmer Beebe, Peter Galster, Natalie Coletta, Janelle Feigley and Linda Piedra). Design consultant Richard Youngken was present. Planning Department staff was present (Shaun Lacey and Maura Harrington). 
2. Summary of November 15 & 16 public outreach meetings
· Planning Department staff provided an overview of the meeting agenda, including summaries from the November 15 & 16 outreach meetings, the feedback received from the public over the course of those two days, and how the public’s response to Brown Street design guidelines apply to enforceability. 
· Staff noted that the public overwhelmingly supported a need for design guidelines at the public workshops, and that a great number of attendees also noted their preference for HDC purview. 
3. Enforcement options for design guidelines
· Staff shared design guideline enforcement options with the committee. One alternative was to include Brown Street into the local historic zoning district, allowing the Historic District Commission (HDC) to apply the design guidelines to Brown Street properties. The second alternative was to not include Brown Street into the historic zoning district, making the guidelines enforceable through a separate review authority, such as a design review board, staff, the Planning Commission or Zoning Board of Review. Staff noted that it would be appropriate for the committee to express its preferences as to who should enforce the guidelines, which would assist staff in preparing the administrative measures required to support the adoption of the guidelines. 
· The HDC review process was discussed amongst the committee, staff and the design consultant. Committee members who own property within the historic district noted positive experiences in appearing before the HDC in recent years. The committee enquired whether the design guidelines could be used in the same manner as the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. The consultant responded that the guidelines would be aligned with the same standards, but would be formatted in context with Brown Street. The consultant noted that regardless of who would be tasked with enforcing the guidelines, the review authority would require continuing education to ensure that the guidelines are applied carefully.
· The committee discussed demolition review options. Staff noted that a demolition delay ordinance was introduced to numerous boards and commissions in recent months, but received a mixed response. The consultant and staff noted that in their research, they could not find any legislation that could prohibit voluntary demolition outside of local historic zoning authority. The committee noted that if the HDC was best suited to control demolition to a reasonable degree, then it may be preferable to include Brown Street within the historic district. 
· Staff and the committee discussed the option of amending the zoning ordinance to place stronger restrictions on building height and building area as a way to deter property owners from voluntarily demolishing buildings. The committee was open to further discussing such options in the future.  
· In the interest of building consensus towards enforceability, the committee called for a vote to determine who should be tasked with applying the design guidelines. Staff asked for a show of hands amongst the committee whether they believed Brown Street should be included in the historic district. The committee voted 6-1 in favor of HDC enforcing the guidelines, based upon the premise that the HDC was best qualified to discourage voluntary demolition of historic structures. 
· The committee discussed the appropriateness of increasing the number of HDC members so that the business community may be represented in the review process. Staff noted that the historic zoning ordinance is designed for HDC membership to be flexible in the event that historic boundaries are expanded or reduced over time. The committee suggested that the HDC membership should be expanded from five to seven members to allow property owners along Brown Street to be represented on the commission. 
4. Design guideline examples and future deliverables
· The consultant introduced a working draft of the guidelines that were being prepared. Design examples were shared in addition to an                                                              overview of the format and organization of the document.
5. Scheduling of next Steering Committee meeting
· The committee agreed to reconvene sometime in early January. The consultant noted that a set of draft design guidelines would be reviewed at the next meeting. 
6. Public comments
· Bee Givan expressed concerns that local historic zoning controls would hold Brown Street business owners to an unreasonable design review process. She also questioned whether the building she owns warranted status as a contributing structure to the historic integrity of the village. 
· Beth Mazza noted that she was unsure whether she had enough information to decide whether local historic zoning was appropriate for Brown Street or not. 
· Amy Sonder and Toby Sonder expressed their support for expanding the historic district onto Brown Street, noting that the review process is informative and not as daunting as many people would believe.
7. Adjournment
· The meeting adjourned at 8:53 PM.
